
COUNCIL

BULLETIN
Issue Number 23/2018
Friday, 8 June 2018

Compiled, designed and produced by 
The Directorate of Governance - Democratic Services

Assistant Director – Governance and Performance 
Management - Simon Hill (Ext. 4249)

This Bulletin is produced for District Councillors and Officers only. 
The information contained herein should not be disclosed or used 
to the disadvantage or the discredit of the Council or anyone else.



2

PART A - FORWARD DIARY

Key to abbreviations:
 

CC      Council Chamber Cab Off Cabinet Office 

CR1     Committee Room 1 CONF Conference Room 
(1st floor)

CR2     Committee Room 2 CH OFF Chairman of 
Council’s Office

MR Members’ Room TR RM Training Room

TBD To be decided HEM Hemnall Street 
Offices.

TBN     To be noted 

TBC  To be confirmed Meeting being filmed 
for subsequent 
viewing

Other venues are shown in full.



3

Week One:  11 June 2018 – 17 June 2018

Monday 
11 June

6.00pm
7.00pm

Briefing – Area Plans Sub-Committee South
Area Planning Sub-Committee South

CR1
CC

Tuesday
12 June 7.00pm Communities Select Committee CR1

Wednesday 
13 June

6.30pm
7.30pm

Briefing – Area Plans Sub-Committee East
Area Planning Sub-Committee East

CR1
CC

Thursday 
14 June

9.30am
5.00pm
7.30pm

Member Training – Licensing
Senior Management  Selection  Panel
Cabinet

CC 
CR1
CC

Friday 
15 June

Saturday 
16 June

Sunday 
17 June

Week Two:  18 June 2018 – 24 June 2018

Monday 
18 June

Tuesday
19 June 6.00pm Member Training – Chairmanship Skills CC

Wednesday 
20 June

10.00am
6.30pm
7.30pm

Licensing Sub-Committee
Briefing – Area Plans Sub-Committee West
Area Planning Sub-Committee West

CC
CR1
CC

Thursday 
21 June 7.00pm Finance and Performance Management 

Cabinet Committee CC

Friday 
22 June

Saturday 
23 June

Sunday 
24 June

https://eppingforestintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=316
https://eppingforestintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=316


4

Week Three:  25 June 2018 – 1 July 2018

Monday 
25 June

Tuesday
26 June 7.30pm Neighbourhoods Select Committee CR1

Wednesday 
27 June

6.30pm
7.30pm

Briefing – Area Plans Sub-Committee South
Area Planning Sub-Committee South

CR1
CC

Thursday 
28 June 7.00pm Member Training – Transformation for 

Councillors CR1

Friday 
29 June

Saturday 
30 June

Sunday 
1 July

Week Four:  2 July 2018 – 8 July 2018

Monday 
2 July

Tuesday
3 July

10.00am
7.15pm

Licensing Sub-Committee
Governance Select Committee

CC
CC

Wednesday 
4 July 7.30pm District Development Management Committee CC

Thursday 
5 July

2.00pm

7.00pm

Member Training - Local Authority Finance 
and Budget Process
Asset Management and Economic 
Development Cabinet Committee

CR1

CC
                    

Friday 
6 July

Saturday 
7 July

Sunday 
8 July

https://eppingforestintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=715
https://eppingforestintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=715


5

PART B - GENERAL INFORMATION

1. QUALITY REVIEW PANEL  

The Quality Review Panel for Epping Forest District Council has now been 
established, together with a similar panel for the Harlow and Gilston Garden Town. 
 The production of Strategic Masterplans, Concept Frameworks, Design Codes and 
other major planning proposals will be informed through review at key stages.  The 
Council will generally expect schemes of more than 50 homes or 5,000 sq metres of 
commercial/other floorspace to be informed by review.  Other smaller schemes 
which are complex or contentious may also be appropriate for review.
 
The EFDC Quality Review Panel held its first review on 26 April 2018, with panel 
members providing design comments and advice for a proposed allocation site 
(WAL.E8) in the Local Plan Submission Version. The proposal, Land North of 
Dowding Way (A121), is for a distribution centre scheme located in Waltham Abbey. 
 
The Quality Review Panel is made up of built environment and design experts, who 
provide independent feedback on proposals to the council and applicant to help 
ensure the design and delivery of high quality developments. Their views will form 
part of the report to the relevant Committee, and will be a material planning 
consideration in the determination of any future planning applications. 
 
For further information on the Quality Review Panel, please see the Terms of 
Reference on our website: http://www.efdclocalplan.org/local-plan/planning-
policy/quality-review-panel/
 
 (Further information: Ione Braddick ext 4205)

2. DISTRICT LINES  (Pages 13 - 38)

Please see attached.

3. PENTANA  

As part of the Task and Finish Panel, Members requested to have access to the new 
project and performance management system Pentana. 

Pentana is the new  project and performance management system used across the 
organisation to monitor projects, programmes and information for the new Corporate 
Plan (including KPI’s and associated Benefits Maps) for Epping Forest District 
Council.

Councillors now have access to view the real time status of projects in relation to the 
corporate project life-cycle and information for the Corporate Plan 2018 - 2023. 

http://www.efdclocalplan.org/local-plan/planning-policy/quality-review-panel/
http://www.efdclocalplan.org/local-plan/planning-policy/quality-review-panel/


6

Project life-cycle –From here you will be able to click on each project and view the 
status relating to the relevant stage of the project lifecycle. You will also be able to 
take a more in-depth look at the progress of each project. 

Corporate Plan 2018-2023 – Here you will be able to view the new Corporate Plan 
2018-2023 summary page. This illustrates the 10 corporate objectives for the next 
five years e.g. 1. People live longer, healthier and independent lives. You can also 
view each the related Benefit Map by clicking on any of the ten objective titles.

A Pentana User guide for Members will be sent to you via email to show you how to 
login and navigate your bespoke portal. 

Training for Pentana will be included in the Members transformation training in June. 

(Further information:  Rebecca Moreton ext 4605)

4. CORPORATE ENFORCEMENT POLICY 2018  (Pages 39 - 64)

Consultation runs from 15 June to 30 June 2018.

Introduction and background

The Council is responsible for enforcement in a wide range of areas, this 
enforcement can take many different forms including undertaking inspections, 
investigating complaints, providing advice, licensing activities, persons or premises, 
issuing statutory or fixed penalty notices, taking prosecutions and undertaking works 
in default of those responsible.  

The decision of when and what enforcement action to take (or not take) can have 
serious implications and it is important that there is an effective policy in place to 
ensure that officers take a consistent approach.  With this in mind the Council has 
reviewed and updated its Corporate Enforcement policy having regard to the 
Statutory Regulators Code and the five principles of good regulation (that regulatory 
activities should be transparent, accountable, proportionate, consistent and 
targeted). 

In general the Council will treat compliant individuals and businesses with lighter, 
alternative interventions and other incentives but for those who commit serious 
breaches or flout the law we will not hesitate to take all necessary enforcement 
action.  The intention is that this overarching policy will be supplemented by further 
documents specific to each area of regulation.  This will help to provide a clear and 
consistent approach that businesses and others can understand.

Consultation information

We want to get this right, so your views would be greatly appreciated, please send 
any comments on the 2018 version of the policy (below) to 
rray@eppingforestdc.gov.uk.

Contact

mailto:rray@eppingforestdc.gov.uk


7

If you have any questions about this consultation, contact Robin Ray at 
rray@eppingforestdc.gov.uk or 01223 457951.

Post any correspondence to Environmental health, Cambridge City Council, PO Box 
700, Cambridge CB1 0JH.

Additional information and documents

Corporate Enforcement Policy 2018 [link]

Next steps

All submitted comments will be considered and where appropriate the policy 
amended prior to submission to Cabinet for approval and publication on our website.

(Further information: Robin Ray ext 4146)

5. CHAIRMAN'S DIARY  

None this week

mailto:rray@eppingforestdc.gov.uk


8

LICENSING ACT 2003

Please be advised that the Licensing Unit has received the following applications for 
New Premises Licence made under the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises below:

Applicant name Mr Mustafa Timur 

Address of Premises: Molen’s Café 209 D/E High Road, Loughton, Essex, IG10 1BB

Brief details of the natures of the application: An application to vary a premises 
licence under the Licensing Act 2003. The proposed variation is for the supply of 
alcohol extended to the newly erected conservatory and supply of alcohol time 
reduced from 23:00 to 18:00. 

Supply of Alcohol 

Monday to Saturday 10:30-18:00
Sunday                     10:30-17:00

Hours premises are open to the public

Monday to Saturday 07:00-18:00
Sunday                     09:00-17:00

Consultation Period From: 7th June 2018 – 4th July 2018 

Officer in charge: Mrs Handan Ibrahim 

Applicant name: Sine Park SE Ltd – Woodbine Social 

Address of Premises:  Woodbine, Waltham Abbey EN9 3RQ

Brief details of the natures of the application: 
New Premises application to replace a Club Premises Certificate.

The premises already holds a Club Premises Certificate since Nov 2005, however 
the premises no longer meets the general conditions under sections 62 of the 
Licensing act 2003, to qualify for a Club Premises Certificate,
So the applicant is now seeking to apply for a full premise licence.

Activities applied for: -                                 
Indoor sporting events                                 
Live music
Recorded music
Performance of dance
Provision of late night refreshment 
Supply of alcohol



9

Monday  - Sunday 12.00 – 01.00,  * The premises applicants  intend  to close at 
23.30 between Sunday – Friday & Saturday 12.00 – 00.00 , the later times have 
been applied for to allow flexibility to premises licence holder to permit  events and 
hire of the premises, so a TEN application doesn’t need to be applied for.

Consultation Period From: 6th June 2018 end of consultation 3rd July 2018
Officer in charge: Sarah Moran

Please ensure that any comments/objections are received by the Licensing team on 
or before the consultation end date.

Manager                       Kim Tuckey        01992 564034
Licensing Compliance Officer Sarah Moran      01992 564270
Licensing Compliance Officer Handan Ibrahim 01992 564153
Licensing  Compliance Officer Joanne Owen     01992 56 4721
Licensing Compliance Officer                  Denise Bastick   01992 564334
Licensing Officer Jane Mullinger    01992 564461



10

GOVERNANCE DIRECTORATE - PLANNING

1. Appeals Lodged

EPF/2669/17 – 93 Manor Road Chigwell Essex IG7 5PN - Outline application for 
demolition of existing house and garage and erection of proposed three detached 
dwellings with garages and associated works. (Revised application from  
EPF/2472/16) – Written reps – Jonathan Doe ext. 4103

EPF/2771/17 – 21 Princes Close North Weald Essex CM16 6EN - Erection of a     
detached 1.5 storey two bedroomed dwelling with associated car parking and new 
access onto High Road (alternative to previously approved bungalow EPF/1440/15) 
– Written reps - Jill Shingler ext. 4106 

EPF/3404/17 – 19 Church Hill Epping Essex CM16 4RA - Proposed first floor 
extension- Householder appeal – Alastair Prince ext. 4462

2. Forthcoming Planning Inquiries/Hearings - 

31/07/2018 – EPF/3364/17 – 119 Theydon Park Road Theydon Bois Essex CM16 
7LS – Sukhvinder Dhadwar

3. Enforcement Appeals

None this week

4. Appeal Decisions

None this week

5. Tree Preservation Orders

None this week 

6. S106 Agreements

None this week

7. Changes to Planning Systems

None this week



11

PROPOSED PLANNING ENFORCEMENT ACTION

None this week

It is important to note, that when enforcement action has been authorised, this 
includes any subsequent action under Part VII of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990, including a prosecution or an injunction.

Principal Planning Enforcement Officer Jerry Godden 01992 564498
Senior Enforcement Officer Clare Munday 01992 564114
Planning Enforcement Officers Sharon Hart

David Thompson
01992 564530
01992 564108

James Gordon 01992 564530
Zara Seelig  01992 564379



12

PART C - PORTFOLIO HOLDER DECISIONS

The notification of decisions taken by individual Portfolio Holders is no longer 
included in the Council Bulletin. 

All members of the Council receive automatic email notification of the publication of 
each individual Portfolio Holder decision and the call-in period for each decision 
commences immediately. Members wishing to call-in a decision should complete the 
attached call-in form and return it to Democratic Services before the expiry of five 
working days following the publication date of the decision. Members should refer to 
the Constitution (Article 6 - Overview and Scrutiny) for the rules of call-in.



Document is Restricted

Page 13

Agenda Item 2



This page is intentionally left blank



 1

 

 

 
 
 

Corporate Enforcement 
Policy 

Page 39

Agenda Item 4



 2

Contents 
 
A. Introduction: ................................................................................................... 3 
1. Enforcement Activity ........................................................................................ 3 
2. The Regulators Code ....................................................................................... 3 
3. Principals of good enforcement ........................................................................ 4 
4. Scheme of Delegation ...................................................................................... 4 
5. Overview .......................................................................................................... 4 
B. Specific Commitments: ................................................................................. 5 
1. We will carry out our enforcement activities in a way that supports those we 

regulate to comply and grow ............................................................................ 5 
2. We will provide simple and straightforward ways to engage with those 

regulated and listen to their views .................................................................... 5 
3. We will base our regulatory activities on risk .................................................... 6 
4. We will share information about compliance and risk with other regulators ...... 6 
5. We will provide clear information, guidance and advice to help those they 

regulate meet their responsibilities to comply ................................................... 7 
6. We will ensure that our approach to regulatory activities is transparent ............ 7 
C. Other Considerations: ................................................................................... 8 
1. Safeguarding .................................................................................................... 8 
2. Equality and Diversity ....................................................................................... 8 
3. Closed Circuit Television (CCTV) ...................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 
4. Victims and witnesses ....................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 
5. The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA) ............................... 10 
6. Aerial Camera ................................................................................................ 10 
7. Body cams ..................................................................................................... 11 
D. Enforcement options: .................................................................................. 13 
1. Prevention ...................................................................................................... 13 
2. Approvals, Consents and Licences ................................................................ 13 
3. Informal Action ............................................................................................... 14 
4. Formal Action ................................................................................................. 14 
7. Prosecution .................................................................................................... 17 
8. Restorative Justice ......................................................................................... 20 
9. Proceeds of Crime ......................................................................................... 21 
E. Training and appointment of officers: ........................................................ 22 
F. Shared Regulatory Roles ............................................................................. 23 
G. What You Can Expect From Us ................................................................... 24 
H. How to complain .......................................................................................... 24 
I. How to contact us ........................................................................................ 25 
 
 
 

 
                                                 

Page 40



 3

A. Introduction:  
 

1. Enforcement Activity  
 
The Council is committed to ensuring that the district continues to be a great place to 
live, work, play, study and do business.  Part of its role is regulatory and the Council 
has a duty and a power to take action to enforce a wide range of statutes relating to: 
 

 public health and safety, 
 quality of life, 
 preservation of public and residential amenity,  
 maintenance of the environment and  
 protection of public funds.  

 
This document represents the Council’s overarching Enforcement Policy and 
supersedes any previous policy statements on enforcement and is supplemented by 
more specific Enforcement and Service Standards relating to specific service areas 
and legislation.  
 
If it is concluded that, on the basis of material evidence, that a specific provision of 
this Policy, the Enforcement or Service Standards is either not applicable or is 
outweighed by another relevant consideration, the regulator is not bound to follow 
that provision, but should record that decision and the reasons for it. 
 
The collection of civil debts and parking regulation should be considered out of scope 
of the document. 
 

2. The Regulators Code  
 
The Regulators Code was laid before Parliament in accordance with section 23 of the 
Legislative and Regulatory Reform Act 2006 (“the Act”) and the Council must have 
regard to the Code when developing policies and operational procedures that guide 
our regulatory activities.  

We must also have regard to the Code when setting standards or giving guidance 
which will inform the regulatory activities of other regulators.  If we conclude, on the 
basis of material evidence, that a specific provision of the Code is either not 
applicable or is outweighed by another relevant consideration, we are not bound to 
follow that provision, but should record that decision and the reasons for it.  

The full code is may be found here: 

www.gov.uk/government/publications/regulators-code  

The principals of the code are that, we should: 

1. Carry out our activities in a way that supports those we regulate to comply 
and grow. 

2. Provide simple and straightforward ways to engage with those we regulate 
and hear their views. 

3. Base our regulatory activities on risk. 
4. Share information about compliance and risk. 
5. Ensure clear information, guidance and advice is available to help those we 

regulate meet their responsibilities to comply. 
6. Ensure that our approach to their regulatory activities is transparent. 

Page 41



 4

 
3. Principles of good enforcement 

 
The Act also states that any person exercising a regulatory function subject to the 
code must carry out their regulatory activities in a way which is: 
 

 transparent 
 accountable  
 proportionate 
 consistent 

 
and should be targeted only at cases in which action is needed. 
 

4. Scheme of Delegation 
 
The Council's Scheme of Delegation specifies the extent to which enforcement 
powers are delegated and are the responsibility of the Council, Cabinet/its 
Committees, Portfolio Holder or Leader, Regulatory and other Committees and 
Officers.  
 

5. Overview 
 
The Council fully supports the principles outlined above and has set out within this 
Policy the procedures to be adopted by all services and expects all officers taking 
enforcement decisions to follow this Policy when making their decision.  
 
Every case must be decided on its own individual facts and officers must ensure that, 
if they depart from the Policy when they make their decision, they can provide 
reasons for doing so.  
 
Along with following the principals of the Code and Act we will observe the 
requirements of approved national bodies and, where practicable, approved national 
good practice guidance.   
 
Where appropriate, services will provide enforcement advice, support and 
information in accessible formats.   
  

Page 42



 5

 
B. Specific Commitments: 

 
1. We will carry out our enforcement activities in a way that supports those we 

regulate to comply and grow 
 
Where possible and appropriate we will avoid imposing unnecessary regulatory 
burdens through our activities

 
and will assess whether a similar outcome could be 

achieved by a less burdensome method.  We will consider proportionate approaches 
to those we regulate, based on relevant factors including, for example, business size 
and capacity.  
 
When designing and reviewing policies, operational procedures and practices, we will 
consider how we might also support or enable economic growth for compliant 
businesses and other regulated entities, by:  
  

 understanding and minimising negative economic impacts of any regulatory 
activity;  

 minimising the cost of compliance;  
 improving confidence in compliance for those we regulate, by providing 

greater certainty; and  
 encouraging and promoting compliance.  

 
We will also ensure that the appropriate officers: 
 

 have the necessary knowledge and skills to support those regulated; 
 have an understanding of those regulated to enable proportionate and 

effective approaches; 
 understand the principles of good regulation, the Code and this policy and 

how we deliver our activities in accordance with them. 
 

2. We will provide simple and straightforward ways to engage with those 
regulated and listen to their views 
 
Where appropriate before changing policies, practices or service standards, we will 
consider the impact on business and give them the opportunity to offer views and 
contribute to the development of their policies and service standards. 
 
Where non-compliance is identified we will clearly explain: 
 

 what the non-compliant item or activity is,  
 the advice being given,  
 actions required or decisions taken, and the reasons for these.  

 
We will provide an opportunity for dialogue in relation to the advice, requirements or 
decisions, to ensure that we are acting in a way that is proportionate and consistent.  
 
This however does not apply where we believe that immediate enforcement action is 
required to prevent or respond to a serious breach or where providing such an 
opportunity would be likely to defeat the purpose of the proposed enforcement action.  

In all cases and where ever possible in writing we will provide an impartial, timely and 
clearly explained route to appeal against any regulatory decision made. This 

Page 43



 6

explanation will be in plain language and if appropriate include practical information 
on the process involved.  

Where those we regulate:  

 feel we have failed to provide a service, or are dissatisfied with the way we 
have provided a service 

 feel we have created an unreasonable delay with the provision of a service 
 feel dissatisfied with the way a policy has been applied or a decision made 
 feel we have failed to fulfil our statutory responsibilities 
 feel we have provided  inaccurate or false information and advice to them 
 wish to complain regarding the in appropriate conduct of a member of staff, 

partner organisation or contractor. 
 
The Council also have a formal complaints process set out here: 
 
http://www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/contact-us/compliments-complaints  
 
And have in place a range of mechanisms to enable and regularly invite, receive and 
take on board customer feedback, including, for example, through customer 
satisfaction surveys of those they regulate. 
 

3. We will base our regulatory activities on risk  
 
Wherever possible each service will take an evidence based approach to determine 
the priority risks in their area of responsibility and allocate resources appropriately.  

Risk will be considered at every stage of the decision-making processes, from 
choosing the most appropriate type of intervention/way of working with those 
regulated to targeting checks on compliance and taking enforcement action.  

Where a system is designed to inform targeting of regulatory activities appropriate 
consultation with those affected will take place and the effectiveness of the system 
reviewed on a regular basis. 

In determining risk we will recognise the compliance record of those we regulate and 
consider all available and relevant data, including evidence from appropriate external 
bodies. 

The effectiveness of our regulatory activities will be reviewed with the aim of 
delivering the desired outcomes and make any adjustments accordingly. 
 

4. We will share information about compliance and risk with other regulators 
 
When the law allows, we will agree secure mechanisms to share information with 
other regulators about businesses and other bodies they regulate, to help target 
resources and activities and minimise duplication.  Where possible we will follow the 
principle of “collect once, use many times” when requesting information from those 
they regulate. 
 
 
  

Page 44



 7

5. We will provide clear information, guidance and advice to help  achieve 
compliance 
 
We will provide advice and guidance that is focused on assisting those we regulate to 
help them understand and meet their responsibilities. When doing so we will 
distinguish providing advice and guidance on good practice from legal requirements 
and do so in a way that does not impose unnecessary burdens in itself.  

We will aim to signpost or publish guidance and information in a clear, accessible 
and concise format using the most media appropriate to the target audience. We will 
listen to those we regulate in relation to any guidance they produced to ensure that it 
meets their needs.  

Overall we will seek to create an environment in which those regulated have 
confidence in the information they receive and feel able to seek advice without fear of 
triggering enforcement action.  

Where a business or individual is regulated by more than one body we will aim to 
work collaboratively and provide consistent advice. 
 

6. We will ensure that our approach to regulatory activities is transparent 
 
For each service area we regulate we will aim to publish a set of clear service 
standards including any fees and charges that may apply (including how they are 
calculated where requested), how to appeal, comment or complain about the service 
provided and setting out to those we regulate what they should expect from us. Along 
with this document these will be published in the Enforcement Standards relating to 
specific service areas. 
 
Information published to meet the provisions of the Regulators Code will be easily 
accessible and be kept up to date.  

Where available, we will publish performance against service standards, including 
feedback received from those we regulate, such as customer satisfaction surveys, 
and data relating to complaints and appeals against our decisions  
 
We have in place mechanisms to ensure that officers act in accordance with 
published service standards including this policy.  

 

Page 45



 8

C. Other Considerations: 
 

1. Safeguarding 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
In the case of a person who was at the relevant time vulnerable (e.g. suffering from 
significant mental or physical ill health) the Council will consider the desirability of 
using formal enforcement balancing the need to safeguard others and taking into 
account the public interest.  
 
We will consider out Safeguarding policy and procedures when determining what (if 
any) enforcement action to take.  The Councils Safeguarding policies and procedure 
can be found here: 
 
http://www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/residents/crime-and-safety/safeguarding  
 

2. Equality and Diversity 
 
 
 
 
 
Promoting equality through our services is very important to us. We work closely with 
customers, residents and employees to make sure that everyone can access our 
services and these services meet their needs. We publish information about the work 
we are doing to reduce inequality and show the progress we are making. 
 
We aim to provide a high standard of service which is accessible to all. Reducing 
inequality is an integral part of what we do and we will treat everyone and fairly 
according to their needs. We are actively seeking to narrow the gap between those 
people who are disadvantaged in comparison to others. We do this through a range 
of initiatives across our housing, planning, benefits, community and environmental 
services; and by identifying our priorities and objectives to work towards 
 
We have a range of documents which provide more information on our equality work, 
including out Equality Framework which provides structure to our equality agenda 
and the systems to deliver it. The Frameworks and associated documents can be 
found here: 
 
http://www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/your-council/plans-and-performance/equality  
 

3. Victims and witnesses 
 
We will at all times have regarding to the Crown Prosecution Service (CPS) guidance 
relating to Victim and Witness care the basic principles of which are that each agency 

“Epping Forest District Council is committed to safeguarding and 
promoting the welfare of all children, young people and adults with 
needs for care and support, as service users, residents and 
visitors to the area. The Council acknowledges the importance of 
working with partner agencies to ensure that children have safe, 
healthy and happy childhoods and that young people and adults 
with needs for care and support are given the support they need 
to enjoy quality of life and well-being”. 

“Epping Forest District Council is committed to ensuring that all 
individuals and groups are treated with respect and are valued 
equally;” 
 

Page 46



 9

involved in the criminal justice system should, where relevant, ensure that victims 
and witnesses: 
 

 are  free of the burden of decisions relating to the offender; 
 receive timely information and explanation about the progress of their case, 

and have the opportunity to provide their own information about the case for 
use in the criminal justice process; 

 are protected in any way necessary; 
 receive compensation when appropriate; 
 receive respect, recognition and support; 
 have their fundamental human rights respected. 

 
The CPS guidance on the care and treatment of victims and witnesses can be found 
here: 
 
http://www.cps.gov.uk/legal/v_to_z/care_and_treatment_of_victims_and_witnesses/  
  

Page 47



 10

 
4. The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA) 

 
The Council has various functions which involve observing or investigating the 
conduct of others, for example, investigating anti-social behaviour, fly tipping, noise 
nuisance control, planning (contraventions), benefit fraud, licensing and food safety 
legislation. In most cases, Council officers carry out these functions openly. However, 
there are rare cases where it is necessary for officers to use covert surveillance 
techniques to undertake a specific investigation. 
 
The use of covert surveillance techniques is regulated by the Regulation of 
Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA), which seeks to ensure that the public interest 
and human rights of individuals are appropriately balanced. The Council’s policy and 
procedures on the use of covert surveillance techniques and the conduct and use of 
a Covert Human Intelligence Source can be found here: 
 
http://rds.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=2173  
 

5. Aerial Camera  
 
In March 2016 Epping Forest DC purchased two Aerial Camera Systems to be 
available for use by all Directorates for to:  
 

 Monitor Land, Sites and Flood Zones 
 Survey Roofs, Land and Buildings 
 Collect Topographic Images 
 Capture Video 

 
The operational procedures and instructions laid out in the Flights Operation Manual 
must be adhered to at all times by all personnel involved in the flight and use of the 
UAV. The Accountable Manager must sign off on all uses and activities involving the 
UAV at the Planning Stage and it is the responsibility of the Directorate end user of 
the imaging gathered to ensure that the imaging is properly and lawfully used and not 
used for anything other than official EFDC purposes. The Data Protection Act 1998 
(DPA) and Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA) are both applicable to the use of the 
RPAS’s.  
 
Any use that may come within the scope of the Regulation of Investigatory Powers 
Act 2000 (RIPA) will be discussed prior to the flight with the Councils RIPA Officer, 
and if required the necessary authorisation obtained in writing before the flight takes 
place.  
 
The Flights operation Manual and Aerial Camera Usage Policy can both be found 
here: 
 
http://www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/residents/crime-and-safety/unmanned-aerial-
vehicle-uav 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 48



 11

6. Body cams 
 
In Epping Forest the North Essex Parking Partnership (NEPP) are responsible for on-
street parking services, including enforcement.   
 
The service is a partnership between Essex County Council and six district/borough 
councils: 
 

 Braintree District Council 
 Colchester Borough Council - who are the lead authority for the partnership 
 Epping Forest District Council 
 Harlow Council 
 Tendring District Council 
 Uttlesford District Council 

 
Off street parking is undertaken by NSL Limited, officers from both services are 
equipped with body worn cameras.  
 
The use of body worn cameras will improve the Health and Safety of parking 
enforcement officers by ensuring that wherever possible, video and audio evidence 
will be available to the Police and Courts in the event of any of their officers being 
subject to incidents of physical or verbal abuse, threats or aggressive behaviour.  

The use of body worn cameras also protects the person subject to enforcement 
action in the event that that they believe they were treated improperly by the 
enforcement officer and reduces the number of unfounded complaints being made 
against the officers. 

NEPP’s policies and procedures relating to their use of body worn cameras can be 
found here: 
 
http://www1.parkingpartnership.org/north/bodyworncameras  
 

8. Closed Circuit Television (CCTV) 
 
Epping Forest District Council’s CCTV schemes exist in order for us to record, view 
and monitor activity within the intended area of coverage, for the purpose of crime 
detection, prevention anti-social behaviour and public safety.   
 
It has operated since the late 1990s and since that time and with the advancement of 
technology our CCTV has grown and developed. Today we operate over 48 schemes 
with over 629 cameras across the Epping Forest District (correct at time of 
publication). 
 
We use overt CCTV in pursuit of a legitimate aim; necessary to meet a pressing 
need; proportionate; effective, and compliant with any relevant legal obligations.  As 
a member of the National CCTV User Group we work closely with the Surveillance 
Camera Commissioner in adopting the National CCTV Strategy for best practice.  
The aim of providing CCTV in Epping Forest DC is to: 
 

•Help secure and maintain safe environments for those who visit, work in, 
trade in or enjoy leisure pursuits within the district. 
•Operate the council’s CCTV schemes fairly and lawfully and only for the 
purpose for which they were established, or subsequently agreed in 
accordance with the CCTV code of practice  

Page 49



 12

 
What is CCTV? 
 
As the name implies, CCTV is a system in which the circuit is closed and all elements 
are directly connected. This is unlike broadcast television where any receiver that is 
correctly tuned can pick up a signal from the airwaves.  
 
Some now refer to CCTV as VSS (Video Surveillance Systems), this is due to 
significant advances in technology that now allow video images to be streamed over 
the internet or through Wi-Fi and micro wave links etc. 
 
Probably the most widely known use of CCTV is in security systems and such 
applications as retail shops, banks, government establishments, etc. The true scope 
for applications is almost unlimited...some examples are listed below: 
 

•Automated Number Plate Recognition (ANPR) 
•Environmental Services 
•Transportation 
•Public places such as high streets 
•Casinos 
•Domestic and private property. 

 
How does CCTV reduce crime? 
 
CCTV has become an increasingly valued tool in the fight against crime and anti-
social behaviour. It provides a permanent record of an incident which may be used 
as evidence in a court of law. Its mere presence can deter criminal activity and alert 
authorities to enable a faster response to an incident    
 
 
The Council’s code of practice for the operation of CCTV and other associated 
documents can be found here: 
 
http://www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/index.php/residents/crime-and-safety/introduction-
to-cctv 
 

9. Data Protection and Privacy 
 

The Data Protection Act 1998 protects the privacy of individuals and places 
obligations on organisations that process personal data. Personal data is any 
information about a living individual that can identify them. The council needs to 
process and store personal data in order to provide its services effectively. 
 
Our Data Protection Policy explains the way that our councillors, employees and 
anyone else working with the council must handle personal information. 
 
To view our Data Protection Policy click here.  
 

Page 50



 13

D. Enforcement options: 
 
When making enforcement decisions officers must have regard to any relevant local 
or national guidance (such as the Regulators Code) as well as the provisions of the 
Human Rights Act 1998, Equalities Act 2010 and this Policy.  
 
For many areas of our enforcement activity government guidance already exists in 
the form of Codes of Practice, Planning Policy Guidance, and Government Circulars 
etc. and there may also be local or regional Codes of Practice which have been 
produced locally to promote consistency in enforcement.  
 

1. Prevention 
 
We believe that the first step in enforcement is to promote good practice, ensure 
policy compliance and prevent contravention of the law by raising awareness and 
promoting good practice. Methods of achieving this include training courses, 
seminars, special promotions, the issuing of press releases, newsletters, the 
Council’s web site, the production of leaflets and other forms of written guidance and 
opportunities presented by day to day contact with businesses and others that we 
regulate.  
 
This approach will be applied when we are not aware of any specific contraventions 
of the law.  
 

2. Approvals, Consents, Registrations and Licences 
 
We provide a range of approvals, consents, registrations and licences as specified by 
individual pieces of legislation.  Many are compulsory in order to operate or 
undertake work, such as planning applications, licensing applications and building 
regulation approvals, but a few are optional.  The approval, rejection and imposition 
of conditions all form part of an enforcement option. 
 
We will work with applicants to help them to understand what is required to gain 
approval through pre-application advice, published guidelines, and post-application 
discussion.  
 
Applications may be approved, varied by agreement and then approved, approved 
subject to conditions, or rejected.  Applicants, or their agents, will always be notified, 
in writing, of the outcome of their application, including the reasons if rejected.  
Details of any rights of appeal will be provided at the time the decision is notified. 
 
Examples of where an application might be approved but with the addition of 
conditions might include (but are not limited to): 
 

 building work is not inherently wrong but plans need to be modified or further 
plans are required 

 developments would be refused if conditions were not attached 
 conditions are necessary to ensure that the purpose of an approval, licence or 

registration is adhered to (for example animal welfare conditions for a Pet 
Shop licence) 

 where a food premises meets all the infrastructure and equipment 
requirements for Approval but does not fully comply with some other 
requirements 

 

Page 51



 14

Examples of where it might be appropriate for an application to be refused include 
(but are not limited to): 
 

 where plans do not show compliance with Building Regulations 
 where a reply to a plan assessment letter is not received, is received too late 

to allow an adequate response, or is unsatisfactory 
 where work, at inspection stage, does not meet minimum standards and 

remedial action is required 
 where other contraventions exist 
 where an application is against local or national policy 
 where there is reason to believe that the applicant will not comply with the 

purpose of a licence or registration or any conditions attached to it (for 
example where there have been previous infringements) 

 where a food business operator fails to meet all the structural and equipment 
requirements 

 
any rejection notice will inform the applicant, or their agent, of the reasons for refusal 
and any right of appeal. 
 

3. Informal Action 
 
Where appropriate we will therefore use our best efforts to resolve situations on an 
informal basis. Informal action may include mediation, schedules of work to be 
undertaken, the issuing of a warning regarding behaviour.  This may not necessarily 
be confirmed in writing but it should be clear what is required from us in order to 
avoid more formal measures.  We will confirm the situation in a clear manner and 
explain why the action is necessary and over what timescale it should be completed 
in and it will be clear those actions which are legal requirements and those that are 
recommendations.   
 
This approach will only be appropriate where there is no statutory duty to take formal 
action and the consequences of non-compliance are considered acceptable. This 
would not for example include occasions where: 
 

 the time period allowed to seek compliance presents a significant risk to or 
impact on health and safety, welfare or the environment, 

 there is demonstrable harm to the amenity of the area, 
 the past history (of the individual or business) suggests that informal action 

will not achieve legal compliance in a reasonable timescale, 
 standards are generally poor, suggesting a low level of awareness of and/or 

compliance with statutory responsibilities, 
 the action is being taken on behalf of a customer/victim, who prefers the 

matter to be handled informally. 
 

4. Formal Action 
 
Circumstances where formal action will be considered include (but are not restricted 
to): 
 

 there is a significant contravention of legislation 
 legislation requires the Council to take a specified action 
 an informal approach has failed 
 there is a history of non-compliance with informal action 

Page 52



 15

 there is a lack of confidence in the successful outcome of an informal 
approach 

 standards are generally poor, suggesting a low level of awareness of, and/or 
compliance with, statutory responsibilities 

 the consequences of non-compliance, for health, safety, the environment, or 
other Council priorities, are unacceptable and/or immediate 

 there is clear harm to the amenity of the area 
 effective action needs to be taken quickly in order to remedy conditions which 

are deteriorating 
 formal action is expected to achieve the desired outcome without incurring 

expense or inconvenience that is disproportionate to risk 
 legal requirements, relevant formal guidance, or other Council policies or 

strategies require formal action to be taken 
 undertaking formal action is likely to result in improved levels of compliance in 

the future 
 
Only officers who have reached a sufficient level of competence will be given the 
delegated authority to take formal action.  The following are the most commonly used 
forms of formal action, it should be noted that depending on the statute each option is 
not mutually exclusive to another.  
 

5. Non Compliance options 
 
Statutory Notices 
 
Much of the legislation that we enforce provide and in some cases require for the 
service of ‘statutory notices’ on individuals, businesses and other organisations 
requiring them to meet specific legal obligations.  
 
Where a ‘statutory notice’ is served, the method of appealing against the notice and 
the timescale for doing so will be provided in writing at the same time. The notice will 
explain what is wrong, what is required to put things right and what the likely 
consequences are if the notice is not complied with.  
 
In some cases a ‘statutory notice’ can be served to prevent the occurrence or 
recurrence of a problem e.g. a noise nuisance.  In most cases, failure to comply with 
a ‘statutory notice’ will result in more severe formal action being taken.  In some 
cases (such as the service of a notice under Part 1 of the Housing Act 2004) there 
will be a charge for serving a statutory notice. 
  
Fixed Penalty Notices and Penalty Charge Notices   
 
These are notices that apply a penalty for specific offences (listed in each service 
Enforcement Standard).  The standards will include details of the level of fine, any 
early payment discount, what will happen if offenders don’t pay and, where it differs 
from this policy, how FPNS are issued, how to appeal, how the money received from 
FPNs will be spent and what records will be kept. 
 
In general a penalty notice will only be issued when:  
 

 an offence has been committed 
 a FPN is a proportionate response 
 there’s evidence to support prosecution if the offender doesn’t pay the fixed 

penalty 

Page 53



 16

 the offender understands why the FPN is being issued 
 you believe that the name and address offered by the offender are correct 

 
A FPN should generally not be issued if any of the following apply: 
 

 there is no criminal liability 
 enforcement action is inappropriate or would be disproportionate for the 

offence 
 prosecution is more suitable 

 
No criminal liability 
 

 the person in question is exempt, eg a blind person whose dog has fouled in 
an area where a public spaces protection order applies  

 the offender is a child under the age of 10 (inform the child’s parents instead) 
 
Enforcement action is inappropriate or disproportionate 
 

 it is not in the public interest to do so  
 the offender is vulnerable 
 the offence is trivial 

 
Prosecution is more suitable 
 

 the offence is major, e.g. deliberate smashing of glass or racist graffiti 
 the offence is committed by a persistent offender 
 the offender is violent or aggressive 

 
Work In Default 
 
In certain cases the Council may undertake work to achieve compliance on behalf of 
others.  This may occur if the responsible person fails to comply, cannot comply by 
virtue of genuine hardship, or is unable to comply by virtue of being absent.  In these 
cases the Council’s costs will normally be recovered from the responsible person.  If 
the costs cannot be recovered, they will usually be placed as a charge against the 
property, to be recovered at a later date. 
 
This kind of formal action will be considered (but is not limited to) where: 
 

 a ‘statutory notice’ requiring work to be undertaken has not been complied 
with, 

 immediate work is required and it is not practicable to contact the responsible 
person, or they are not willing to respond immediately, 

 there is no responsible person e.g. burial or cremation of a deceased person 
with no next-of-kin. 

 
Cautions  
 
A simple caution (previously known as a formal caution) may be issued as an 
alternative to a prosecution and will be considered during any decision to prosecute.  
 
Cautions will be issued to:  
 

 deal quickly and simply with less serious offences; 

Page 54



 17

 divert less serious offences away from the courts; or 
 reduce the chances of repeat offences.  

 
To safeguard the suspected offender's interests the following conditions will be 
fulfilled before a caution is administered: 
 

 there must be evidence of the suspected offender's guilt sufficient to give a 
realistic prospect of conviction; and 

 the suspected offender has admitted the offence; and 
 the suspected offender understands the significance of a caution and gives 

informed consent to being cautioned.  
 
A caution is a serious matter, which will influence any future decision should the 
company or individual offend again. It can be referred to in any subsequent court 
proceedings, but this will not apply if the caution was issued more than 3 years 
before. Where the offer of a caution is refused, a prosecution will generally be 
pursued.  No pressure will be applied to a person to accept a caution. 
 
Prosecution  
 
The Council recognises that the decision to prosecute is significant and would be a 
last resort and could have far reaching consequences on the offender. The 
investigating officer will prepare a case for prosecution and pass to the Council’s 
Solicitor to review the evidence and assess the viability of a prosecution.  
 
All relevant evidence and information will be considered before deciding upon a 
prosecution in order to enable a consistent, fair and objective decision to be made. 
The Council will have regard to the Code for Crown Prosecutors, which is available 
here: 
 
https://www.cps.gov.uk/publications/docs/code_2013_accessible_english.pdf  
 
In summary a two stage process will be considered:  
 
The evidential stage  
 

The Council must be satisfied that there is sufficient evidence to provide a 
realistic prospect of conviction against the suspect on each charge. The finding 
that there is a realistic prospect of conviction will be based on an  objective 
assessment of the evidence, including the impact of any defence, and any other 
information that the suspect has put forward or on which he or she might rely.  
 
It means that an objective, impartial and reasonable jury or bench of magistrates 
or judge hearing a case alone, properly directed and acting in accordance with 
the law, is more likely than not to convict the defendant of the charge.  A case 
which does not pass the evidential stage must not proceed.   
 
When deciding whether there is sufficient evidence to prosecute we will consider:   
 

Can the evidence be used in court? 
 
Is there is any question over the admissibility of certain evidence. In doing so we 
will make an assessment of: 
 

Page 55



 18

 the likelihood of that evidence being held as inadmissible by the court; 
and 

 the importance of that evidence in relation to the evidence as a whole. 
 

Is the evidence reliable? 
 
We will also consider whether there are any reasons to question the reliability of 
the evidence, including its accuracy or integrity. 
 

Is the evidence credible? 
 
We will consider whether there are any reasons to doubt the credibility of the 
evidence. 

 
Is the prosecution in in the public interest? 
 

In every case where there is sufficient evidence to justify a prosecution, 
prosecutors must go on to consider whether a prosecution is required in the 
public interest. 
 
It has never been the rule that a prosecution will automatically take place once 
the evidential stage is met. A prosecution will usually take place unless the 
prosecutor is satisfied that there are public interest factors tending against 
prosecution which outweigh those tending in favour. In some cases the 
prosecutor may be satisfied that the public interest can be properly served by 
offering the offender the opportunity to have the matter dealt with by an out-of-
court disposal rather than bringing a prosecution. 
 
Prosecutors should consider each of the following questions: 

 
How serious is the offence committed? 

 
The more serious the offence, the more likely it is that a prosecution is required. 
 
When deciding the level of seriousness of the offence committed, prosecutors 
should include amongst the factors for consideration the suspect's culpability 
and the harm to the victim. 

 
What is the level of culpability of the suspect? 

 
Culpability is likely to be determined by the suspect's level of involvement; the 
extent to which the offending was premeditated and/or planned; whether they 
have previous criminal convictions and/or out-of-court disposals and any 
offending whilst on bail; or whilst subject to a court order; whether the offending 
was or is likely to be continued, repeated or escalated; and the suspect's age or 
maturity (see below for suspects under 18). 
 
Prosecutors should also have regard when considering culpability as to whether 
the suspect is, or was at the time of the offence, suffering from any significant 
mental or physical ill health as in some circumstances this may mean that it is 
less likely that a prosecution is required. However, prosecutors will also need to 
consider how serious the offence was, whether it is likely to be repeated and the 
need to safeguard the public or those providing care to such persons. 

 
What are the circumstances of and the harm caused to the victim? 

Page 56



 19

 
The circumstances of the victim are highly relevant. The greater the vulnerability 
of the victim, the more likely it is that a prosecution is required. This includes 
where a position of trust or authority exists between the suspect and victim. 
 
A prosecution is also more likely if the offence has been committed against a 
victim who was at the time a person serving the public. 
 
Prosecutors must also have regard to whether the offence was motivated by any 
form of discrimination against the victim's ethnic or national origin, gender, 
disability, age, religion or belief, sexual orientation or gender identity; or the 
suspect demonstrated hostility towards the victim based on any of those 
characteristics. The presence of any such motivation or hostility will mean that it 
is more likely that prosecution is required. 
 
In deciding whether a prosecution is required in the public interest, prosecutors 
should take into account the views expressed by the victim about the impact that 
the offence has had. In appropriate cases, this may also include the views of the 
victim's family. 
 
Prosecutors also need to consider if a prosecution is likely to have an adverse 
effect on the victim's physical or mental health, always bearing in mind the 
seriousness of the offence. If there is evidence that prosecution is likely to have 
an adverse impact on the victim’s health it may make a prosecution less likely, 
taking into account the victim's views. 
 
However, the CPS does not act for victims or their families in the same way as 
solicitors act for their clients, and prosecutors must form an overall view of the 
public interest. 

 
Was the suspect under the age of 18 at the time of the offence? 

 
The criminal justice system treats children and young people differently from 
adults and significant weight must be attached to the age of the suspect if they 
are a child or young person under 18. The best interests and welfare of the child 
or young person must be considered including whether a prosecution is likely to 
have an adverse impact on his or her future prospects that is disproportionate to 
the seriousness of the offending. Prosecutors must have regard to the principal 
aim of the youth justice system which is to prevent offending by children and 
young people. Prosecutors must also have regard to the obligations arising 
under the United Nations 1989 Convention on the Rights of the Child. 
 
As a starting point, the younger the suspect, the less likely it is that a prosecution 
is required. 
 
However, there may be circumstances which mean that notwithstanding the fact 
that the suspect is under 18, a prosecution is in the public interest. These include 
where the offence committed is serious, where the suspect's past record 
suggests that there are no suitable alternatives to prosecution, or where the 
absence of an admission means that out-of-court disposals which might have 
addressed the offending behaviour are not available. 

 
What is the impact on the community? 

 

Page 57



 20

The greater the impact of the offending on the community, the more likely it is 
that a prosecution is required. In considering this question, prosecutors should 
have regard to how community is an inclusive term and is not restricted to 
communities defined by location. 

 
Is prosecution a proportionate response? 

 
Prosecutors should also consider whether prosecution is proportionate to the 
likely outcome, and in so doing the following may be relevant to the case under 
consideration: 
 
The cost to the CPS prosecution service and the wider criminal justice system, 
especially where it could be regarded as excessive when weighed against any 
likely penalty (Prosecutors should not decide the public interest on the basis of 
this factor alone. It is essential that regard is also given to the public interest 
factors identified when considering the other questions in paragraphs above, but 
cost is a relevant factor when making an overall assessment of the public 
interest). 
 
Cases should be capable of being prosecuted in a way that is consistent with 
principles of effective case management. For example, in a case involving 
multiple offenders, prosecution might be reserved for the key main participants in 
order to avoid excessively long and complex proceedings. 

 
Do sources of information require protecting? 

 
In cases where public interest immunity does not apply, special care should be 
taken when proceeding with a prosecution where details may need to be made 
public that could harm sources of information, international relations or national 
security. It is essential that such cases are kept under continuing review. 
 
Where there has been a breach of the law leading to a work-related death, the 
Council will liaise with the police, coroner, the CPS and, if there is evidence of 
manslaughter, we will pass the case to the police or, where appropriate, to the 
CPS and /or the Health & Safety Executive (HSE). 

 
6. Restorative Justice 
 
Where appropriate and available, the Council will consider the use of Restorative 
Justice.  Restorative Justice is a process through which parties with a stake in a 
specific offence collectively resolve how to deal with the aftermath of the offence and 
its implications for the future. 

Page 58



 21

7. Proceeds of Crime 
 
Where appropriate the Council will consider the use of the Proceeds of Crime Act 
2002. The Proceeds of Crime Act allows Local Authorities to recover assets that 
have been accrued through criminal activity. 
 

Page 59



 22

E. Training and appointment of officers: 
 
All officers undertaking enforcement duties will be suitably trained and qualified so as 
to ensure that they are fully competent to undertake their enforcement activities.  
 
Officers will be mentored and shadowed to ensure that there is a consistent 
approach to enforcement  
 
The Council supports the principle of continuing professional development and will 
ensure that all officers are given additional in-post training to maintain up to date 
knowledge and skills. This will be highlighted through their learning and development 
plan as part of their performance review 
 
Officers may have a variety of delegated powers to assist them in carrying out 
investigations. For example, this can include the power to require answers to 
questions and the power to enter premises, usually during reasonable hours e.g. 
normal opening times.  Officers will carry an identity card and their authorisation with 
them at all times.  Except in the event of a serious and imminent risk to harm we will 
not insist on entry into a person’s home without giving 24 hours notice or producing a 
Court Order.   
 
In the event of any doubt as to an officer’s powers, confirmation can be obtained from 
the Council describing their powers, or by contacting their manager at the Council.  It 
can be an offence in itself to obstruct an authorised officer who is conducting an 
inspection or investigation which may lead to prosecution.   
 

Page 60



 23

F. Shared Regulatory Roles: 

 
Where the Council has a complementary regulatory role or is required to inform an 
outside regulatory agency of an incident or occurrence it will do so. Such external 
agencies include (but are not restricted to): 
 
Police     
Fire Authority 

Health and Safety Executive 
Environment Agency 

County Council services 
Other Council services 

Utility Providers 
Other Councils 

 
Officers will attempt to co-ordinate visits and actions with other agencies to achieve 
the most efficient and effective outcomes and to minimise inconvenience for those 
who are being visited, inspected, or subject to other enforcement action. 
 
Wherever possible, in situations where there is a shared enforcement role, the most 
appropriate authority will, by mutual agreement, carry out the enforcement action. 
 
Exchange of information with other enforcement teams within the Council will take 
place wherever applicable. Liaison will also take place between relevant services and 
Members within the Council to avoid potential conflicts of interest. 
 

Page 61



 24

G. What You Can Expect From Us: 
 
We will be objective to ensure that our decisions are not influenced by gender, ethnic 
origin, religious or political beliefs, disability or sexual orientation  
 
We will enter into discussion and offer advice to anyone to try to ensure that they do 
not unnecessarily expose themselves to the possibility of formal action through a lack 
of understanding or information. 
 
We will be consistent in our approach by following the criteria and guidance set down 
in relevant legislation, codes of practice, and our own written procedures and work 
instructions. 
 
We will ensure that before deciding to offer a caution, or take a prosecution, the case 
will be subject to independent review by a senior manager. 
 
We will provide a courteous and efficient service and our staff will identify themselves 
by name when they visit you, or speak to you on the telephone. 
 
We will respect confidentiality subject to any legal requirements to disclose 
information (for example disclosure to support a prosecution) 
 
We are committed to making sure that this Policy is effective.  To ensure that it is we 
would encourage businesses regulated bodies and citizens to challenge us they 
believe we not acting in accordance with this policy, our standards or more broadly 
the Regulators Code.  
 

H. How to complain:  
 
If you are dissatisfied with the service you have received, please let us know. We are 
committed to providing quality services and your suggestions and criticisms about 
any aspect of our service will help us to do this. Most problems can be resolved with 
the Council employee who has been dealing with the matter in and the first instance 
we would encourage you to contact them, or you may wish to speak to their 
supervisor. 
 
If you are still not happy, you can make a formal complaint using the Council’s 
Complaints Procedure.   
 
If you would then like to raise a concern with us please use our online form.  
 
You can also email us at: contactus@eppingforestdc.gov.uk or call us on 01992 
564000. 
 
The full Council complaints procedure (including what we can and cannot investigate 
for you) can be found here: 
http://www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/contact-us/compliments-complaints  
 

Page 62



 25

I. How to contact us: 
 
If you need more information please visit www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk to find the 
information you require. 
 
If you cannot find what you need on our site please email 
contactus@eppingforesdc.gov.uk and we will contact you as soon as possible. 
 
You can also contact us via Social media. 
 
Alternatively you can call our main switchboard on 01992 564000 during office hours. 
 
And you can also write to us at: 
 
Epping Forest District Council,  
Civic Offices,  
323 High Street,  
Epping,  
Essex CM16 4BZ 
 
Change log: 
19.1.18  Updated How to contact us section Para I. 

Out of scope services/functions added to Para. A1. 
  Service specific documents added to Para A1. 
  Added data protection section and changed running order, Para C. 
  Corrected typo’s Para. C7. 
  Added wording ‘Non Compliance options’ to Para D4 

Renumbered bullets Para D, 
Produced summary, plain English version. 

12.2.18 Amended Body cam section, C6. 
 A1 removal of specific service area documents 
 Amended sections D3, D4 and D5 
 Amended E 

Amended typo to H 
 

Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 District Lines
	4 Corporate Enforcement Policy 2018

